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Nations, Jamie Chisick and Buff were in violation of this section when they made
statements to the Department that Nations’ Washington records would be promptly returned to
Washington and made available to the Department.

5. Pursuant to RCW 19.146.0201(8), as of July 21, 1997, it is a violation to negligently
make any false statement or knowingly and willfully make any omission of material fact in
connection with any reports filed by a mortgage broker or in connection with any
investigation conducted by the department.

Nations, Jamie Chisick, and Buff were in violation of this section when they stated to
the Department that all records had been produced as requested and that no documents had been
removed from the loan files. Nations, Jamie Chisick and Buff wete in violation of this section
when they, subsequent to the Stay, informed the Department in writing on November 4, 1997,
that Nations had implemented steps to insure full compliance with the Act, when, they clearly
had not.

. 6. Pursuant to RCW 19.146.0201(11), and pricr to July 21, 1997, it was a violation to
advertise any rate of interest without conspicuously disclosing the annual percentage rate
implied by such rate of interest or otherwise fail to comply with any requirement of the truth-in-
lending act, 15 U.S.C. Sec. 1601 and Regulation Z, 12 C.F.R. Sec. 226 or the equal credit
opportunity act, Regulation B, Sec. 202.9, 202.11, and 202.12, as now or hereafter amended, in
any advertising of residential mortgage loans or any other mortgage brokerage activity. Also,

prior to fuly 21, 1997, and pursuant to RCW 19.146.030(4), a violation of the Truth-in-Lending
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Act, Regulation Z, the Real' Estate Settlement Procedures Act, and Regulation X is a violation
of RCW 19.146.030 for purposes of this chapter.

| From July 21, 1997, pursuant to RCW 19.146.0201(10), it is a violation to fail to
comply with any requirement of the truth-in-lending act, 15 U.S.C. Sec. 1601 and Regulation
Z, 12 C.F.R. Sec. 226, the real estate settlement procedures act, 12 U.S.C. Sec. 2601 and
Regulation X, 24 C.F.R. Sec. 3500, or the equal credit opportunity act, 15 U.S.C. Sec. 1691 and
Regulation B, Sec. 202.9, 202.11, and 202.12, as now or hereafter amended, in any advertising
of residential mortgage loans or any other mortgage brokerage activity.

Nations, Jamie Chisick, Brad Chisick, Buff, Willis, Johnson, Williams and Kraus are in
violation of this section when they either personally commit the acts and practices listed in
sections IV.C, [V.E.,, IV.F,, IV.J.,, and IV.M. of this order, instruct employees to commit the
acts and practices listed in sections IV.C.,, IV.E,, IV.F., IV.J., and IV.M. of this order, create an
environment that instructs, rcqx_lires or condones others in the commission of the acts and
practices listed in sections IV.C., IV.E., IV.F., IV.],, and IV.M. of this order, or fail to
undertake whatever reasonable steps might be necessary to prevent Nations employees from
committing the acts and practices listed in sections IV.C,, IV.E., IV.F,, IV.J,, and IV.M., of this
order.

E. Written Disclosure of Fees and Costs. Pursuant to RCW 19. 146.030(1), within three

bﬁsiness days following receipt of a loan application or any moneys from a borrower, a

" mortgage broker shall provide to each borrower a full written disclosure containing an

itemization and explanation of all fees and costs that the borrower is required to pay in
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connection with obtaining a residential mortgage loan, and specifying the fee or fees which
inure to the benefit of the mortgage broker and other such disclosures as may be required by
rule. A good faith estimate of a fee or cost shall be provided if the exact amount of the fee or
cost is not determinable. This subsection shall not be construed to require disclosure of the
distribution or breakdown of loan fees, discount, or points between the mortgage broker and
any lender or investor.”® Pursuant to RCW 19.146.030(2), the written disclosure shall contain
specific information. Nations violations of RCW 19.146.030(1) and (2) are discussed by type
or content of required disclosure below:

1. Pursuant to RCW 19.146.030(2)(a), it is a violation to fail to provide within the
required time period, the annual percentage rate, finance charge, amount financed, total amount
of all payments, number of payments, amount of each payment, amount of points or prepaid
interest and the conditions and terms under which any loan terms may change between the time
of disclosure and closing of the_'loan; and if a variable rate, the circumstances under which the
rate may increase, any limitation on the increase, the effect of an increase, and an example of
the payment terms resulting from an increase. Disclosure in compliance with the requirements
of the truth-in-lending act, 15 U.S.C. Sec. 1601 and Regulation Z, 12 C.F.R. Sec. 226, as now
or hereafter amended, shall be deemed to comply with the disclosure requirements of this

subsection. (Referred to earlier as the “TIL Disclosure.”)

3% Prior to 7/21/97, this paragraph cited a violation for failure to make the required disclosures “upon receipt of a

loan application and before receipt of any moneys from a borrower.” Although the Department has determined
that Nations committed at least 68 violations under the prior language of RCW 19.146.030, for consistency in this
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Nations, Jamie Chisick, Brad Chisick, Buff, Willis, Johnson, Williams and Kraus are in
violation of this section when they: 1). either personally fail to provide the TIL Disclosure as
required by this section, or commit the acts and practices listed in sections IV.C, IV.D.,, IV.E.,
and I'V.J, of this order; 11). instruct employees to fail to provide the TIL Disclosure as required
by this section, or instruct employees to commit the acts and practices listed in sections IV.C.,
IV.D, IV.E, and IV J. of this order; iii). create an environment that instructs or requires others
to fail to provide the TIL Disclosure as required by this section, or instruct, require or condone
others in the commission of the acts and practices listed in sections IV.C., IV.D., IV.E,, and
IV.J. of this order, or iv). fail to undertake whatever reasonable steps might be necessary to
insure the provision of the TIL Disclosure as required by this section by Nations employees, or
fail to undertake whatever reasonable steps mi ght be necessary to prevent Nations employees
from committing the acts and practices listed in sections IV.C., IV.D., IV.E., and IV.J. of this
order.

2. Pursuant to RCW 19.146.030{2)(b), it is a violation to fail to provide within the
required time period, the itemized costs of any credit report, appraisal, title report, title
insurance policy, mortgage insurance, escrow fee, property tax, insurance, structural or pest

inspection, and any other third-party provider's costs associated with the residential

order, these 68 violations are included as violations under the less restrictive language of the section from 7/21/97
forward.
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mortgage loan. Disclosure through good faith estimates of settlement services and special
information booklets in compliance with the requirements of the real estate settlement
procedures act, 12 U.S.C. Sec. 2601, and Regulation X, 24 C.F.R. Sec. 3500, as now

or hereafter amended, shall be deemed to comply with the disclosure requirements of this
subsection. (Referred to earlier as the “GFE Disclosure.”)

Nations, Jamie Chisick, Brad Chisick, Buff, Willis, Johnson, Williams and Kraus are in
violation of this section when they: i). either personally fail to provide the GFE Disclosure as
required by this sectidn, or commit the acts and practices listed in sections IV.C, IV.D,,IV.E,,
aﬁd IV.J. of this order; ii). instruct employees to fail to provide the GFE Disclosure as required
by this section, or instruct employees to commit the acts and practices listed in sections [V.C.,
IV.D,, IV.E,, and IV.J. of this order; ii1). create an environment that instructs or requires others
to fail to provide the GFE Disclosure as required by this section, or instruct, require or condone
others in the commission of thf:__ acts and practices listed in sections IV.C., IV.D., IV.E., and
IV.J. of this order, of iv). fail to undertake whatever reasonable steps might be necessary to
insure the provision of the GFE Disclosure as required by this section by Nations employees, or
fail to undertake whatever reasonable steps might be necessary to prevent Nations employees
from committing the acts and practices listed in sections IV.C., IV.D., IV.E., and IV.J. of this
order.

3. Pursuant to RCW 19.146.030(2)(c), it is a violation to fail to provide within the
required time period, a disc;losure, if applicable, covering the cost, terms, duration, and
conditions of a lock-in agreemeﬂt and whether a lock-in agreement has been entered, and
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whether the lock-in agreement is guaranteed by the mortgage broker or lender, and if a lock-in
agreement has not been entered, disclosure in a form acceptable to the director that the
disclosed interest rate and terms are subject to change. (Referred to earlier as the “Rate Lock
Disclosure.™)

Nations, Jamie Chisick, Brad Chisick, Buff, Willis, Johnson, Williams and Kraus are in
violation of this section when they: i). either personally fail to provide the Rate Lock Disclosure
as required by this section, or commit the acts and practices listed in sections IV.C, IV.D., and
IV J. of this order; ii). instruct employees fo fail to provide the Rate Lock Disclosure as
required by this section, or instruct employees to commit the acts and practices listed in
sections I'V.C., IV.D., and IV.J. of this order; ii1). create an enviroriment that instructs or
requires others to fail to provide the Rate Lock Disclosure as required by this section, or
nstruct, require or condone others in the commission of the acts and practices listed in sections
IV.C,1V.D,, and IV.]J. of this o_;‘der, or iv). fail to undertake whatever reasonable steps might
be necessary to insure the provision of the Rate Lock Disclosure as required by this section by
Nations employees, or fail to undertake whatever reasonable steps might be necessary to
prevent Nations employees from committing the acts and practices listed in sections IV.C,,
IV.D., and I'V.J. of this order.

4. Pursuant to RCW 19.146.030(2)(d), it is a violation to fail to provide within the
required time period, a statement that if the borrower is unable to obtain a loan for any reason,
the mortgage broker must, Wlthm five days of a written request by the borrower, give copies of
any appraisal, title report, or credit réport paid for by the borrower to the borrower, and transmit
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the appraisal, title report, or credit report to any other mortgage broker or lender to whom the
borrower directs the documents to be sent. (Referred to earl as “Third Party Provider Reports
Disclosure.”)

Nations, Jamie Chisick, Brad Chisick, Buff, Willis, Johnson, Williams and Kraus are in
violation of this section when they: i). either personally fail to provide the Third Party Provider
Reports Disclosure as required by this section, or commit the acts and practices listed in
sections IV.C, IV.D., and IV J. of this order; ii). instruct employees to fail to provide the Thjra
Party Provider Reports Disclosure as required by this section, or instruct employees to commit
the acts and practices listed in sections IV.C., IV.D., and IV J. of this order; iii). create an
environment that instructs or requires others to fail to provide the Third Party Provider Reports
Disclosure as required by this section, or instruct, require or condone others in the commission
of the acts and practices listed in sections IV.C., IV.D., and IV J. of this order, or iv). fail to
undertake whatever reasonable steps might be necessary to insure the provision of the Third
Party Provider Reports Disclosure as required by this section by Nations employees, or fail to
undertake whatever reasonable steps might be necessary to prevent Nations employees from
committing the acts and practices listed in sections IV.C., IV.D., IV.E., and IV.]J. of this order.

5. Pursuant to RCW 19.146.030(2)(e), it is a violation to fail to provide information to
the borrower covering whethér and under what conditions any lock-in fees are refundable to the
borrower.

Nations, Jamie Chisick, Brad Chisick, Buff, Willis, Johnsoh, Williams and Kraus are in
violation of this section when they: i). either personally fail to provide this additional Rate Lock
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Disclosure as required by this section, or commit the acts and practices listed in sections IV.C,

‘IV.D., and IV.]. of this order; ii). instruct employees to fail to provide this additional Rate Lock

Disclosure as required by this section, or instruct employees to commit the acts and practices
listed in sections IV.C., IV.D., and IV.J. of this order; iii). create an environment that instructs
or requires others to fail to provide this additional Rate Lock Disclosure as required by this
section, or instruct, require or condone others in the commission of the acts and practices listed
in sections IV.C,, IV.D., and IVJ . of this order, or iv). fail to undertake whatever reasonable
steps might be necessary to insure the provision of this additioﬁal Rate Lock Disclosure as
required by this section by Nations employees, or fail to undertake whatever reasonable steps
might be necessary to prevent Nations employees from committing the acts and practices listed
in sections IV.C., IV.D., and IV J. of this order.

6. Pursuant to RCW 19.146.030(2)(f), it is a violation to fail to provide, a statement
providing that moneys paid by the borrower to the mortgage broker for third-party provider
services are held in a trust account and any moneys remaining after payment to third-party
providers will be refunded. (Referred to earlier as the “Trust Funds Disclosure.”) -

. Nations, Jamie Chisick, Brad Chisick, Buff, Willis, Johnson, Williams and Kraus are in
violation of this section when they: i). either personally fail to provide the Trust Funds
Disclosure as required by this section, or commit the acts and practices listed in sections IV.C,
IV.D., IV.E., and IV.J. of this order; ii). instruct employees to fail to provide the Trust Funds
Disclosure as required by this section, of instruct employees to commit the acts and practices
listed in sections IV.C., IV.D., IV.E., and IV.J. of this order; iii). create an environment that
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instructs or requires others to fail to provide the Trust Eunds Disclosure as required by this
section, or inétruct, require or condone others in the commission of the acts and practices listed
in sections IV.C., IV.D,, IV.E., and 1V .J. of this order, or iv). fail to undertake whatever
rcasonable steps might be necessary to insure the provision of the Trust Funds Disclosure as
required by this section by Nations employees, or fail to undertake whatever reasonable steps
might be necessary to prevent Nations employees from committing the acts and practices listed
in sections IV.C., IV.D., IV.E,, and IV.]. of this order.

7. Pursuant to RCW 19.146.030(4)", a mortgage broker shall not charge any fee that
inures to the benefit of the mortgage broker if it exceeds the fee disclosed on the written
disclosure pursuant to this section, unless (a) the need to charge the fee was not reasonably
foreseeable at the time the written disclosure was provided and (b) the mortgage broker has
providgd to the borrower, no less than three business days prior to the signing of the loan
closing documents, a clear written explanation of the fee and the reason for charging a fee
exceeding that which was previously disclosed. However, if the borrower's closing bosts,
excluding prepaid escrowed costs of ownership as defined by rule, does not exceed the total
closing costs in the most recent good faith estimate, no other disclosures shall be required by
this subsection.

Nations, Jamie Chisick, Brad Chisick, Buff, Willis, Johnson, Williams and Kraus are in

violation of this section when they: 1). either personally fail to provide this disclosure as

% Prior to 7/21/97, this paragraph was codified as RCW 19.146.030(5). No other change was made to this
section of the amended statute.
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required by this sectibn, or commit the acts and practices listed in sections IV.]., and IV.J. of
this order; 1i}. instruct employees to fail to provide this disclosure as required by this section, or
instruct employeles to commit the acts and practices listed in sections IV 1., and TV.J. of this
order; 1i1). create an environment that instructs or requires others to fail to provide this
disclosure as required by this section, or instruct, require or condone others in the commission
of the acts and practices listed in sections IV.1., and IV.]. of this order, or iv). fail to undertake
whatever reasonable steps might be necessary to insure the provision of this disclosure as
required by this section by Nations employees, or fail to undertake whatever reasonable steps
might be necessary to prevent Nations employees from committing the acts and practices listed
in sections IV .1, and I'V.J. of this order.

F. Moneys for Third-Party Provider Services Deemed in Trust -- Deposit of Moneys in Trust

Account--Use of Trust Account. Pursuant to RCW 19.146.050, all moneys received by a

mortgage broker from a borrower for payment of third-party provider services shall be deemed
as held in trust immediately upon receipt by the mortgage broker. A mortgage broker shall
deposit, prior to the end of the third business day following receipt of such trust funds, all such
trust funds in a trust account of a federally insured financial institution located in this state. All
trust account funds collected under this chapter must remain on deposit in a trust account in the
state of Washington until disbursement. The trust account shall be designated and maintained
for the benefit of borrowerg. Moneys maintained in the trust account shall be exempt from
execution, attachment, or gamishment. A mortgage broker shall not in any way encumber the
corpus of the trust account or commingle any other operating funds with trust account funds.

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
STATEMENT OF CHARGES, AND Division of Consumer Services
INTENT TO ORDER - 144 318 GA Bidg, P.O. 41200
Olympia, WA 98504-1200
(360) 902-8703




10

11

12

- 13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

Withdrawals from the trust account shall be only for the payment of bona fide services rendered
by a third-party provider or for refunds to borrowers. The director shall make rules which: (1)
Direct mortgage brokers how to handle checks and other instruments that are received by the
broker and that combine trust funds with other funds; and (2) permit transfer of trust funds out
of the trust account for payment of other costs only when necessary and only with the prior
express written permission of the borrower. Any interest earned on the trust account shall be
refunded or credited to the borrowers at closing. Trust accounts that are operated in a manner
consistent with this section and any rules adopted by the director, are considered exempt from
taxation under chapter 82.04 RCW.

Chapter 208-660 WAC, PART D, TRUST ACCOUNTS AND ACCOUNTING
REQUIREMENTS, states:

1. 208-660-08010. Establishment of trust account for borrower funds to pay
third-party providers. Each mortgage broker shall as trustee hold all funds received from
borrowers for payment to third-party providers. The funds may not be used for the benefit of
the mortgage broker or any person not entitled to such benefit, except as may be expressly
permitted by the Mortgage Broker Practices Act. Each mortgage broker shall establish a trust
account(s) for the funds in a financial institution's branch located in this state. Each inortgage
broker is responsible for depositing, holding, disbursing, accounting for, and otherwise dealing
with the funds, in accordance with the act.

2. 208-660-08020. Required trust account records a.nd procedures. Each
mortgage broker shall establish and maintain a system of records and procedures for trust

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
STATEMENT OF CHARGES, AND Division of Consumer Services
INTENT TO ORDER - 145 318 GA Bldg, P.O. 41200
Olympia, WA 98504-1200
(360) 902-8703




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

26

accounts as provided in the Mottgage Broker Practices Act. Any alternative records or
prdcedures proposed for use by the mortgage broker shall be approved in advance by the
director or his or her designee. Each mortgage broker shall maintain as part of its books
and records:

(1) A trust account deposit register and copies of all validated deposit slips or
signed deposit receipts for each deposit to the trust account,

(2) A ledger for each trust account. Each ledger must contain a separate
subaccount ledger sheet for each borrower from whom funds are received for payment of third-
party providers. Each receipt and disbursement pertaining to such funds must be posted to the
ledger sheet at the time the receipt or disbursement occurs. Entries to each ledger sheet must
show the date of deposit, identifying check or instrurnent number, amount and name of
remitter. Offsetting entries to each ledger sheet must show the date of check, check number,
amount of check, name of payee and invoice number if any. Canceled or closed ledger sheets
must be identified by time period and borrower name or loan number;

(3) A trust account check register consisting of a record of all deposits to and
disbursements from the trust account;

(4) Reconciled trust account bank statements;

(5) A monthly trial balance of the ledger of trust accounts, and a reconciliation

of the ledger of trust accounts with the related bank statement(s) and the related check

register(s).
The reconciled balance of the trust account(s) must at all times equal the sum of:
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(a) The outstanding amount of funds received from borrowers for payment of
third-party providers; and

(b) The outstanding amount of any deposits into the trust fund of the mortgage
broker's own funds in accordance with WAC 208-660-08025(4).

3. 208-660-08025. Trust account deposit requirements.

(1) All funds received from borrowers or on behalf of borrowers for the payment
of third-party providers, whether specifically identified as such or not, and regardless of when
they are received, must be deposited in the trust account(s) prior to the end of ‘Irhe next business
day following receipt. In order to satisfy this requirement in regard to the deposit of a check or
money order, the mortgage broker must within one business day after receipt of the check or
money order:

(a) Endorse the check or money order "for deposit only" with the broker's
trust account number and mail the check postage prepaid to its financial institution; or

(b) Endorse the check or money order "for deposit only" with the
mortgage broker's trust account deposit number and mail the check or money order postage
prepaid to the main office of the broker. The main office shall, in ﬁ:m, deposit the check or
money order in it financial institution prior to the end of the next business day after receipt of
the check or money‘ order in the main office; or

(c) Deposit the check or money order into its trust account by depositing

it directly at the branch where its trust account is held or at an ATM of its financial institution.
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{2) All deposits to the trust account(s) must be documented by a bank deposit
slip which has 1t.>f:en validated by bank imprint, or by an attached deposit receipt which bears the
signature of an authorized representative of the mortgage broker indicating that the funds were
actually deposited into the proper account(s).

(3) Receipt of funds by wire transfer or any means other than cash, check, or
money order, must be posted in the same manner as other receipts. Any such transfer of funds
must include a traceable identifying name or number supplied by the financial institution or
transferring entity. The mortgage broker must also retain a receipt for the deposit of the funds
which must contain the traceable identifying name or number supplied by the financial
institution or transferring entity.

(4) Deposits to the trust account(s) must be limited to funds delivered to the
mortgage broker for payment to third-party providers, except a mortgage broker may deposit its
own funds into the trust account(s) to prevent a disbursement in excess of an individual
borrower's subaccount, provided that the exact sum of deficiency is deposited and detailed
records of the deposit and its purpose are maintained in the trust Iedger and the trust account(s)
check register. Any deposits of the mortgage broker's own funds into the trust account(s) must
be held in trust in the same manner as funds paid by borrowers for the payment of third-party
providers and treated accordingly in compliance with the Mortgage Broker Practices Act. Ifa
mortgage broker has deposited its own funds into its trust account, the mortgage broker may

receive reimbursement for such deposit at closing into its general business bank account

provided:
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(a) All third-party provider's charges associated with the mortgage
broker's deposit have been paid;

{b) The HUD 1 Settlement Statement provided to the borrowe;r clearly
reflects the line item, "deposit paid by broker," and the amount deposited;

(c) The HUD 1 Settlement Statement provided to the borrower clearly
reflects the line item, "reimbursement to broker for funds advances," and the amount
reimbursed; and

(d) Any funds disbursed by escrow at closing to the mortgage broker for
payment of unpaid third-party providers' expenses charged or to be charged to the mortgage
broker are deposited into the borrower's subaccount of the mortgage broker's trust account.

4, 208-660-08030. Trust account disbursement requirements.

(1) Each mortgage broker is responsible for the disbursement of all trust account
funds, whether disbu_rsed by personal signature, signature plate, or signature of another person
authorized to act on the mortgage broker's behalf.

(3) Disbursements may be made from the trust account(s) for the payment of
bona fide third-party providers' services rendered in the course of the borrower's loan
origination, if the borrower has consented in writing to the payment. Such consent may be
given at any time during the application process and in any written form, provided that it
contains sufficient detail to verify the borrower's consent to the use of trust funds. No

disbursement on behalf of the borrower may be made from the trust account until the
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borrower's or broker's deposit of sufficient funds into the trust account(s) is available for
withdrawal.

(5) Among other prohibited disbursements, no disbursement may be made from
a borrower's subaccount:

(2) In excess of the amount held in the borrower's subaccount (commonly
referred to as a disbursement in excess);

(b) In payment of a fee owed to any employee of the mortgage broker or
in payment of any business expense of the mortgage broker;

(¢) For payment of any service charges related to the management or
administration of the trust account(s);

(d) For payment of any fees éwed to the mortgage broker by the
borrower, or to transfer funds from the subaccount to any other account; and

(e) For the payment of fees owed to the broker under RCW 19.146.070
(2)(a)-

(6) A mortgage broker may, in the case of a closed and funded transaction,
transfer excess funds remaining in the individual borrower's subaccount into the mortgage
broker's general business bank account upon determination that all third-party providers'
expenses have been accurately reported in the loén closing documents and have been paid in
full, and that the borrower has received credit in the loan closing documents for all funds

deposited in the trust account.
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Each mortgage broker shall maintain a detailed audit trail for any disbursements
from the borrower's subaccount(s) into the mortgage broker's general business bank account,
including documentation in the form of a final HUD-1 Settlement Statement form showing that
credit has been received by the borrower in the closing and funding of the transaction. The
disbursements must be made by a check drawn on the trust account and deposited directly into
the mortgage broker's general business bank account.

Nations, Jamie Chisick, Buff and Willis are in violation of the trust accounting
requirements under both the Act and the rules to the Act, as identified above, when they
commit the violations noted in section IV.L. of this order.

G. Accounting Requirements. Pursuant to RCW 19.146.060(2), and prior to July 21, 1997, a

mortgage broker shall maintain accurate, current, and readily available books and records at the
mortgage broker's usual business location until at least four years have elapsed following the
effective period to which the books and records relate.

Pursuant to RCW 19.146.060(2), from July 21, 1997, except as otherwise provided in
subsection (3) of this section, a mortgage broker shall maintain accurate and current books and
records which shall be readily available at the mortgage broker's usual business location until at
least twenty-five r'nonths‘have elapsed following the effective period to which the books and
records relate.

Pursuant to RCW 19.146.060(3), where a mortgage broker's usual business location
is outside of the state of Washington, the mortgage broker shall, as -determined by the director
by rule, either maintain its books and records at a locafion in this state, or reimburse the director
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for his or her expenses, including but not limited to transportation, food, and lodging expenses,
relating to any examination or investigation resulting under this chapter.

Pursuant to RCW 19.146.060(4), "books and records" includes but is not limited to:

(a) Copies of all advertisements placed by or at the request of the mortgage
broker which mention rates or fees. In the case of radio or television advertisements, or
advertisements placed on a telephonic information line or other electronic source of information
including but not limited to a computer data base or electronic bulletin board, a mortgage
broker shall keep copies of the precise script for the advertisement. All adverﬁsement records
shall include for each advertisement the date or dates of publication and name of each
periodical, broadcast station, or telephone information line which published the advertisement
or, in the case of a flyer or other material distributed by the mortgage broker, the dates,
methods, and areas of distribution; and

(b) Copies of alt documents, notes, computer records if not stored in printed
form, correspondence or memoranda relating to a borrc.)wer from whom the mortgage broker
has accepted a deposit or other funds, or accepted a r_esidentia.l mortgage loan application or
with whom the mortgage broker has entered into an agreement to assist in obtaining a
residential mortgége loan.

Pursuant to WAC 208-660-140(2), all books and records must be kept in a location in
this state that is readily accessible to the departrnent. However, a mortgage broker may store its
books and records outside the state with the prior approval of the director, and after executing a
written agreement with the director:
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(a) To provide access to its books and records to investigate complaints against
the mortgage broker; and

(b) To pay the department's travel, lodging and per diem expenses incurred in
travel to examine books and records stored out-of-state.

Pursuant to WAC 208-660-140(3), books and records include without limitation: The
original contracts for the broker's compensation, an accounting of all funds received in
connection with loans, a copy of the settlement statements as provided to borrowers, a record
of any fees refunded to applicants for loans that did not close, copies of the good faith estimates
and all other wﬁtten disclosures, and all other correspondence, papers or records relating to
loan applications.

Nations, Jamie Chisick, Brad Chisick, Buff and Willis are in violation of these sections
when they fail to maintain books and records as discussed under section IV.A. of this order.

H. License — Required. Pursuant to RCW 19.146.200(1}, a person may not engage in the

business of a mortgage broker, except as an employee ofa person licensed or exempt from
licensing, without first obtaining and maintaining a license under this chapter.

Pursuant to RCW 19.146.250, no license issued under the provisions of this chapter
shall authorize any person other than the person to whom it is issued to do any act by virtue
thereof nor to operate in any other manner than under his or her own name except:

(DA 1icens§d rnortéage broker may operate or advertise under a name other

than the one under which the license is issued by obtaining the written consent of the director to

do so; and

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
STATEMENT COF CHARGES, AND ) Division of Consumer Services
INTENT TO ORDER - 153 318 GA Bldg, P.O. 41200

Olympia, WA 98504-1200
(360) 902-8703




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
1.8
19
20
21
22
23
‘24
25

26

(2) A broker may establish one or more branch offices under a name or names
different from that of the main office if the name or names are approved by the director, so long
as each branch office is clearly identified as a branch or division of the main office. Both the
name of the branch office and of the main office must clearly appear on the sign identifying the
office, if any, and in any advertisement or on any letterhead of any stationery or any forms, or
signs used by the mortgage firm on which either the name of the main or branch offices
appears.

Pursuant to RCW 19.146.265, a licensed mortgage broker may apply to the director for
authority to establish one or more branch offices under the same or different name as the main
office upon the payment of a fee as prescribed by the director by rule. Provided that the -
applicant is in good standing with the department, as defined in rule by the director, the director
shall promptly issue a duplicate license for each of the branch offices showing the location of
the main office and the particular branch. Each duplicate license shall be prominently
displayed in the office for which it is issued.

Pursnant to WAC 208-660-110(1), a license may not be transferred.

The above sections, and the definitions of “branch office,” “holds oneself out,” and
“mortgage brokef," establish a violation for any person or mortgage broker that hold
themselves out as a mortgage broker to Washington consumers from any fixed physical
location, unless such location holds either a license issued pursuant to RCW 19.146.200 or a

branch license issued pursuant to RCW 19.146.265.
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Nations, Jamie Chisick, Brad Chisick, Buff, Willis, Williams and Kraus are in violation
of these sections when they participated in, authorized, supervised, instructed, or condoned the
unlicensed acts of holding Nations cut as a mortgage broker in Washington from locations in
Portland and California as is discussed in section IV.K. of this order. Nations, Chisick and
Willis are in violation of these sections when they participated in, authorized, supervised,
instructed, or condoned uniicensed acts of holding Nations out as a mortgage broker in
Washington prior to holding a license as is discussed specifically in sections IV.K.7. and 8.
Further, Nations, Jamie Chisick, Brad Chisick and Willis are in violation of WAC 208-660-
110(1), when they convinced the Department that a license transfer from GAMC to Nations
was actually a name change authorized under the rules.

At times, representatives of Nations and GAMC have provided the Department with
conflicting informatién concerning the legal and licensed status of Nations and GAMC. Jamie
Chisick and Willis are in violation of RCW 19.146.250, when they held GAMC out under the
name of Nations as able to conduct business with Wasﬁington CONSUMETS.

L. Investigation Powers--Duties of Person Subject to Examination or Investigation. Pursuant to

RCW 19.146.235, for the purposes of investigating complaints arising under this chapter, the
director may at aﬁy time, either personally or by a designee, examine the business, including
but not limited to the books, accounts, records, and files used therein, of every licensee and of
every person engaged in the business of mortgage brokering, whether such a person shall act or

claim to act under or without the authority of this chapter. For that purpose the director and
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designated representatives shall have access during regular business hours tothe offices and
places of business, books, accounts, papers, records, files, safes, and vaults of all such
persons. The director or designated person may direct or order the attendance of and examine
under oath all persons whose testimony may be required about the loans or the business or
subject matter of any such examination or investigation, and may direct or order such person to
produce books, accounts, records, ﬁlies, and any other documents the director or designated
person deems relevant to the inquiry. If a person who receives such a directive or order
does not attend and testify, or does not produce the requested books, records, files, or other
documents within the time period established in the directive or order, then the director or
designated person may issue a subpoena requiring attendance or compelling production of
books, records, files, or other documents. No person subject to examination or investigation
under this chapter shall withhold, abstract, remove, mutilate, destroy, or secrete any books,
records, computer records, or other information.
Nations, Jamie Chisick, Buff and Willis are in violation of this section when, as

discussed under sections IILB. and IV.A. of this order, they:

1. Withheld, refused or delayed the Department access to records.

2. ‘Removed records to California.

3. Failed to comply with three demands, a subpoena and a directive.

4. Destroyed or secreted file documents.

J. License Application Denjal or Condition; License Suspension or Revocation. Pursuant to

WAC 208-660-160(1), the director may deny or condition approval of a license application, or
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suspend or revoke a license if the applicant or licensee, or any principal or designated broker of
the applicant or licensee:

(e) Has failed to demonstrate financial responsibility, character, and general fitness such
as to command the confidence of the community and to warrant a belief that the business will
be operated honestly, fairly, and efficiently within the purposes of the Mortgage Broker
Practices Act.

(f) Has omitted, misrepresented, or concealed material facts in obtaining a license or in
obtaining reinstatement thereof;

(g) Has violated the provisions of the Mortgage Broker Practices Act, or the Consumer
Protection Act;

(j) Has aided or abetted an unlicensed person to practice in violation of the Mortgage
Broker Practices Act;

(k) Has demonstrated incompetence or negiigence that results in injury to a person or
that creates an unreasonable risk that a person may be harmed;

(m) Has failed to comply with an order, directive, or requirement of the director, or his
or her designee, or with an assurance of discontinuance entered into with the director, or his or
her designee;

(n) Has performed an act of misrepresentation or fraud in any aspect of the conduct of
the mortgage broker business or profession;

(0) Has failed to cooperate with the director, or his or her designee, including without
limitation by:
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(i) Not fumnishing any necessary papers or d‘ocuments. requested by the director
for purposes of conducting an investigation for disciplinary actions or denial, suspension, or
revocation of a license; or

(i) Not furnishing any necessary papers or documents requested by the director
for purposes of conducting an investigation into a complaint against the licensee filed with the
department, or providing a full and éomplete written explanation of the circumstances of the
complaint upon request by the director;

(p) Has interfered with an investigation or disciplinary proceeding by willful
misrepresentation of facts before the director or the director's designee, or by the use of threats
or harassment against a client, witness, employee of the licensee, or representative of the
director for the purpose of preventing them from discovering evidence for, or providing
evidence in, any disciplinary proceeding or other legal action;

(2) The director may deny or condition approval of a branch office application, or
suspend or revoke a branch office certificate, if the branch office manager has failed to provide
any required items described in subsection (1)(r) and (s) of this section.

K. Powers and Duties—Violations Pursuant to RCW 19.146.220(1) The director shall enforce

all laws and rules relating to the licensing of mortgage brokers, grant or deny licenses to
mortgage brokers, and hold hearings.

Pursuant to RCW 19.146.220(2), the director may impose the following sanctions:
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(2) Deny applications for licenses for: (i) Violations of orders, including cease
and desist orders issued under this chapter; or (ii} any violation of RCW 19.146.050 or
19.146.0201(1) through (9);

{(b) Suspend or revoke licenses for:

(i) False statements or omission of material information on the
application that, if known, would have allowed the director to deny the application for the
original license;

(iii) Failure to comply with any directive or order of the director; or

(iv) Any violation of RCW 19.146.050, 19.146.060(3), 19.146.0201 (1)
through (9) or (12), 19.146.205(4), or 19.146.265;

(c) Impose fines on the licensee, employee or loan originator of the licensee, or
other person subject to this chapter for:

| (i) Any violations of RCW 19.146.0201 (1) through (9) or (12),
19.146.030 through 19.146.080, 19.146.200, 19.146.205(4), or 19.146.265; or

(ii) Failure to comply with any directive or order of the director;

(d) Issue orders directing a licensee, its employee or loan originator, or other
person subject to this chapter to:

(i) Cease and desist from conducting business in a manner that is
injurious to the public or vjolates any provision of this chapter; or '

(ii) Pay restitution to an injured borrower; or

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
STATEMENT OF CHARGES, AND Division of Cansumer Services
INTENT TO ORDER - 153 318 GA Bldg, P.0. 41200
Olympia, WA 98504-1200
(3603 902-8703




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

i8

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

() Issue orders removing from office or prohibiting from participation in the
conduct of the affairs of a licenseci mortgage broker, or both, any officer, principal, employee,
or loan originator of any licensed mortgage broker or any person subject to licensing under this
chapter for:

(i) Any violation of 19.146.0201 (1) through (9) or (12), 19.146.030
through 19.146.080, 19.146.200, 19.146.205(4), or 19.146.265; or
(ii) False statements or omission of material information on the
application that, if known, would have allowed the director to deny the application for the
original license;
(iv) Failure to comply with any directive or brder of the director.
(3) Each day's continuance of a violation or failure to comply with any directive or
order of the director is a separate and distinct violation or failure.
(4) The director shall establish by rule standards for licensure of applicants licensed in
other jurisdictions.

L. Administration and Interpretation. Pursvant to RCW 19.146.223, the director shall have the

power and broad administrative discretion to administer and interpret the provisions of this

chapter to fulfill the intent of the legislature as expressed in RCW 19.146.005.

M. Findings and Declaration. Pursuant to RCW 19.146.005, the legislature finds and declares

that the brokering of residential real estate loans substantially affects the public interest. The
practices of mortgage brokers have had significant impact on the citizens of the state and the
banking and real estate industries. It is the intent of the legislature to establish a state system of

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
STATEMENT OF CHARGES, AND Division of Consumer Services
INTENT TO ORDER - 160 318 GA Bidg, P.O. 41200
Qlympia, WA 98504-1200
(360} 902-8703




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

26

licensure in addition to rules of practice and conduct of mortgage brokers to promote honesty |
and fair dealing with citizens and to preserve public confidence in the lending and real estate
community.

N. Fees. Pursuant to RCW 19.146.228, the director shall establish fees by rule in accordance
with RCW 43.24.086 sufficient to cover, but not exceed, the costs of administering this chapter.
These fees may include: \

(2) An investigation fee to cover the costs of any investigation of the books and records
of a licensee or other person subject to this chapter.

Pursuant to WAC 208-660-060(4), upon completion of any investigation of the books
and records of a mortgage broker other than a licensee, the department will furnish to the broker
a billing to cover the cost of the investigation. The invesﬁgation charge will be calculated at
the rate of forty-five dollars per hour that each staff person devoted to the investigation. The
investigation billing will be paid by the mortgage broker promptly upon receipt.

O. Claims Against Bond. Pursuant to RCW 19.146.240(1) The director or any person injured

by a violation of this chapter may bring an action against the surety bond or approved
alternative of the licensed mortgage broker who committed the violation or who employed or
engaged the loan -on'ginator who committed the violation.

Pursuant to RCW 19.146.240(2)(a), the direétor or any person who is damaged by the |
licensee's or its loan originator's violation of this chapter, or rules adopted under this chapter,
may bring suit upon the surety bond or approved alternative in the superior court of any county
in which jurisdiction over the licensee may be obtained. Jurisdiction shall be exclusively in the
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superior court. Any such action must be brought not later than one year after the alleged
violation of this chapter or rules adepted under this chapter.

Pursuant to RCW 19.146.240(3) The remedies provided under this section are
cumulative and nonexclusive and do not affect any other remedy available at law.

P. Fines and Penalties. Pursuant to WAC 208-660-165, each mortgage broker and each of its

principals, designated brokers, officers, employees, independent contractors, and agents shall
comply with the applicable provisions of the Mortgage Broker Practices Act. Each violation of
any applicable provision of the Mortgage Broker Practices Act, or of any order, directive, or
requirement of the director may, at the discr‘etion of the director, subject the violator to a fine of
up to one hundred dollars for each offense. Each day's continuance of the violation is a
separate and distinct offense. In addition, the director in his or her discretion may by order
assess other penalties for a violation of the Mortgage Broker Practices Act.

Q. Liability. RCW 19.146.245, a licensed mortgage broker is liable for any conduct violating
this chapter by the designated broker, a loan originator; or other licensed mortgage

broker while employed or engaged by the licensed mortgage broker.

R. Criminal penalties. Pursuant to RCW 19.146.110, any person who violates any provision of

this chapter other than RCW 19.146.050 or any rule or order of the director shall be guilty of a
misdemeanor punishable under chapter 9A.20 RCW. Any person who violates RCW

19.146.050 shall be guilty of a class C felony under chapter 9A.20 RCW.

A
AN
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VL. NOTICE OF INTENTION TO ENTER AN ORDER
Respondents violations of the Act as set forth above constitute the basis for the entry of an
order under RCW 19.146.220. Therefore, it is the Director's intention to ORDER:

A. Nationscapital Mortgage Corp. (“Nations™):

1. Nations’ license to hold itself out as a mortgage broker to Washington consumers from
any location is revoked for a peﬁod of twenty years.
2. Nations’ application for branch licenses in Portland and California is denied.
3. Nations shall maintain its books and records in compliance with RCW 19.146.060 and
the rules thereunder.
4. Nations shall pay restitution to 122 consumers in the amount of $735,641.13, as
represented in Exhibit D of this c&der.
5. Nations shall pay a fine of $474,250.00, detailed as follows:
a. Yiolations of RCW 19.146.0201(1) — (3), assessed at $100.00 per day times
643 separate violations, for a total of $64,300.00. |
b. Violations of RCW 19.146.0201(6), assessed at $100.00 per day times 643
separate ﬁolaﬁons, for a total of $64,300.00.
c. Violations of RCW 19.146.0201(7), assessed at $100.00 per day times 293
separate violations for a total of $29,300.00.
~ d. Violation of RCW 19.146.0201(8) pre-July 21, 1997, assessed at $100.00 per

day for 91 days of a single violation for-a total of $9,100.00.
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e. Violation of RCW 19.146.0201(8), assessed at $100.00 per day times 371
separate violations for a total of $37,100.00.
f. Violations of RCW 19.146.0201(10), assessed at $100.00 per day times 371
separate violations for a total of $37,100.00.
g. Violations of RCW 19.146.050, assessed at $75 per day, for a total of
$20,850.00, detailed as follows:
i. 187 days late on deposit times $75.00 for $14,025.00.
ii, 1 commingling deposit times $75.00 for $75.00.
ili. 26 failures to deposit times $75.00 for $1,950.00.
iv. 64 counts of commingling or conversion times $75.00 for $4,800:00.
h. Violation of RCW 19.146.060(3), assessed at $100.00 per day for 978 days of a
single violation for a total of $97,800.00.
1. Viqlations of RCW 19.146.265, assessed at $100.00 per day for 978 days of a
single violation for a total of $97,800.00.
j. A violation of failure to comply with any directive or order of the director
begifining August 18, 1997 and continuing for 166 days for a total of $16,600.00.
6. Natipns shall pay an investigation fee of $29,040.75 for 645.35 hours of investigation.
B. Jamie Chisick. |
1. Jamie Chisick is prohibited from participating in the conduct of the éﬂ'airs of a licensed
mortgage broker, or any person subject to licensing under this chapter, as an officer, principal,
employee, or loan originator, for a period of twenty (20) years, based upon violations of RCW
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19.146.0201, RCW 19.146.030, RCW 19.146.200 and RCW 19.146.265, and failure to comply
with any directive or order of the director.

2. Jamie Chisick shall maintain Nations books and records in corxipliance with RCW
19.146.060 and the rules thereunder.

3. Jamie Chisick, on behalf of Naﬁons or. personally, shall pay restitution to 122
consumers in the amount of $735,641.13, as represented in Exhibit D of this order, however this
restitution shall be paid only once by either Jamie Chisick, Brad Chisick or Nations.

4, Jafnie Chisick shall pay a fine of $474,250.00, detailed as follows:

a. Violations. of RCW 19.146.0201(1) — (3), asgessed at $100.00 per day times
643 separate violations, for a total of £64,300.00.

b. Violations of RCW 19.146.0201(6), assessed at $100.00 per day times 643
separate violations, for a total of $64,300.00.

c. Violations of RCW 19.146.0201(7), assessed at $100.00 per day times 293
separate violations for a total of $29,300.00.

d. .Violation of RCW 19.146.0201(8) pre-July 21, 1997, assessed ﬁt $100.00 per
day for 91 days of a single viclation for a totél of $9,10.0.00.

e. Violation of RCW 19.146.0201(8), assessed at $100.00 per day times 371
separate violations for altotal of $37,100.00. .

£ Violations of RCW 19.146.0201(10), assessed at $100.00 per day times 371

separate violations for a total of $37,100.00.
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g. Violations of RCW 19.146.050, assessed at $75 per day, for a total of
$20,850.00, detailed as follows:
1. 187 days late on deposit times $75.00 for $14,025.00.
il. 1 commingling deposit times $75.00 for $75.00.
ifi. 26 failures to deposit times $75.00 for $1,950.00.
iv. 64 counts of commingling or conversion times $75.00 for $4,800.00.
h. Violation of RCW 19.146.060(3), assessed at $100.00 per day for 978 days o-f a
single violation for a total of $97,800.00.
i. Violations of RCW 19.146.265, assessed at $100.00 per day for 978 days of a
single violation for a total of $97,800.00.
j. A violation of failure to comply with any directive or order of the director
beginning August 18, 1997 and continuing for 166 days for a total of $16,600.00.
5. Jamie Chisick shall pay, on behalf of Nations, an investigation fee of $29,040.75 for
645.35 hours of investigation, however, this fee shall be paid only once either by Nations, Jamie
Chisick or Brad Chisick.
C. Brad Chisick.
1. Brad Chisick is prohibited from participating in the conduct of the affairs of a licensed
mortgage broker, or any person subject to licensing under this chapter, as an officer, principal,
employee, or loan originator, for a period of twenty (20) years, based upon violations of RCW

19.146.0201, RCW 19.146.030, RCW 19.146.200 and RCW 19.146.265.
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Olympia, WA 985041200
(360) 502-8703




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

2. Brad Chisick, on behaif of Nations or personally, shall pay restitution to 122
consumers in the amount of $735,641.13, as represented in Exhibit D of this order, however this
restitution shall be paid only once by either Jamie Chisick, Brad Chisick or Nations.

3. Brad Chisick shall pay, on behalf of Nations, an investigation fee of $29,040.75 for
645.35 hours of investigation, however, this fee shall be paid only once either by Nations, Jamie
Chisick, or Brad Chisick.

D. Steven Willis (“Willis™).

1. Willis is prohibited from participating in the conduct of the affairs of a licensed
mortgage broker, or any person subject to licensing under this chapter, as an officer, principal,
employee, or loan originator, for a period of fifteen (15} years, based upon violations of RCW
19.146.0201, RCW 19.146.030, RCW 19.146.200 anci RCW 19.146.265, and failure to comply
with any directive or order of the director.

2. Willis shall pay a fine of $404,700.00 detailed as follows:

é. Violations of RCW 19.146.0201(1) — (3), assessed at $100.00 pér day times
643 separate violations, for a total of $64,300.00.

b. Violations of RCW 19.146.0201(6), assessed at $100.00 per day times 643
separate violations, for a totall'o'f $64,300.00. -

¢. Violations of RCW 19.146.0201(7), assessed at $100.00 per day times 293
separate violations for a total of $29?300.00.

d. Violations of RCW 19.146.0201(10), assessed at $100.00 per day times 371
separate violations for a tétal of $37,100.00.

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
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e. . Violations of RCW 19.146.050, assessed at $75 per day, for a total of
$14,100.00, detailed as follows:
i. 187 days late on deposit times $75.00 for $14,025.00.
ii. 1 commingling deposit times $75.00 for $75.00.
f. Violation of RCW 19.146.060(3), assessed at $100.00 per day for 978 days of a
single violation for a total of $97,800.00.
g. Violations of RCW 19.146.265, assessed at $100.00 per day for 978 days of a
single violation for a total of $97,800.00.

E. Michael Buff (“Buff”).

1. Buff is prohibited from participating in the conduct of the affairs of a licensed
mortgage broker, or any person subject to licensing under this chapter, as an officer, principal,
employee, or loan originator, for a period of five (5) years, based upon. violations of RCW
19.146.0201, RCW 19'146'0303 and RCW 19.146.265, failure to comply with any directive or
order of the director.. |

2. Buff sh;il pay a fine of $37,100.00, detailed as follows:

a. Violation of RCW 19.146.0201(R), assessed at $100.00 per day times 371
separate violations for a total of $37,100.00.

F. Scott Johnson (“Johnson™).

Johnson is prohibited from participating in the conduct of the affairs of a licensed

mortgage broker, or any person subject to licensing under this chapter, as an officer, principal,

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
STATEMENT OF CHARGES, AND - Division of Consumer Services
INTENT TO ORDER - 168 318 GA Bldg, P.0. 41200
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employee, or loan originator, for a period of five (5) years, based upon violations of RCW
19.146.0201, RCW 19.146.030.

G. Darren Williams (“Williams”)

Williams is prohibited from participating in the conduct of the affairs of a licensed
mortgage broker, or any person subject to licensing under this chapter, as an officer, principal,
employee, or loan originator, for a period of five (5) years, based upon viclations of RCW
19.146.0201, RCW 19.146.030, and RCW 19.146.265.

H. Kevin Kraus (“Kraus™}

Kraus is prohibited from participating in the condﬁct of the affairs of a licensed mortgage
broker, or any person subject to licensing under this chapter, as an officer, principal, employee, or
loan originator, for a period of five (5) years, based upon violations of RCW 19.146.0201, RCW
19.146.030, and RCW 19.146.265.

W
W
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VIL. AUTHORITY AND PROCEDURE
This Statement of Charges and Notice of Intention to Enter an Order to Cease and Desist
is entered pursuant to RCW 19.146.220, RCW 19.146.230 and chapter 34.05 RCW. The
Respondents may make a written request for hearing as set forth in the Notice of Opportunity to
Defend and Opportunity for Hearing accompanying this Statement of Charges and Notice of
Intent to Enter an Order.
7
DATED this /3~ day of May, 1998.
- Q\\Y‘ !dx&f/@ ’

x% (fjp | M Cashat.

r:\%:' \;’f;:- - o o T

= | - Z . MARK THOMSON

= L =: : Director

=Y _ Division of Consumer Services

By Department of Financial Institutions
oy |
Presented by: o Reviewed by:
Chuck Cross Alice Blado
Supervising Analyst Assistant Attorney General
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